
 1

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
August 28, 2013 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public Comments 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the August 14, 2013 Board Meeting. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes 

 
 
 
 
 



 2

7. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Acacia Erosion Control, Inc. 
in the amount of $33,495.00 to install temporary tanks at Villanova 
Reservoir Site, Specification No. 13-365. 

  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion Approving Recommendation 
 
8. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Consumption Report. 
b. Investment Report. 

 
9. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

August 14, 2013 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held August 14, 2013 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Word, Hicks, and Kaiser were present. 
Directors Bergen and Baggerly were absent. Also present were Steve 
Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, 
John Mathews.  There was one staff member and two members of the public in 
attendance.  President Word led the group in the flag salute. 
 

1. Public Comments 
 

None 
 
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board of an arc flash event that happened at 
Rincon Pump Plant.  No one was hurt but the contractor will have to pick up the 
expenses for the repairs.  They hooked into a high energy circuit.  Mr. Wickstrum 
then mentioned the need to replace the refrigerator at the District office.  It was at 
least 30 years old and highly used by employees.  It will be replaced with an 
energy efficient model.  

 
 The ridership on the free trolley at Lake Casitas Recreation Area was up 
to 264 rides but there is not very much commuting between Ojai and the lake.  
This program will be evaluated further.  The Water Adventure received a surprise 
inspection from the state of California yesterday.  The inspector was pleased with 
the operation of the Water Adventure.  We have also received a notice about fish 
consumption.  Park Services Manager Carol Belser added there is a link on the 
fishing and boating web site and Dr. Maxwell said they would be talking about it 
and will let us know if there is something for agencies to do.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum then mentioned that the Recreation Area won second place 
with their display at the Ventura County Fair and was awarded $400.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
  

Director Hicks mentioned a conversation he had with Luke and the 
efficiency of the new meters.  
 

Director Kaiser mentioned a notice from Best, Best & Kreiger regarding an 
appellate court decision and that it will be interesting to see how this all works 
out.   
 

President Word asked where we are on the oxygenation program.  Mr. 
Wickstrum replied that the study is addressing equipment for changing out our 
system.   
 
 



 2

 
4. Consent Agenda       APPROVED 
 

a. Minutes of the July 24, 2013 Board Meeting. 
 

 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the Consent Agenda was approved. 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the bills were approved. 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
b. Executive Committee Minutes 

 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the Committee/Manager reports were approved for filing. 
 
7. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Harrington Industrial Plastics 

of Ventura for a not to exceed amount of $48,629.78 to provide and 
deliver a 100,000 gallon pillow tank.    APPROVED 

  
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the above recommendation was approved. 
 
8. Recommend approval of a purchase order for West Coast Welding & 

Construction, Inc. in the amount of $20,238.88 for the refurbishment of 
Casitas Dam’s #8 intake screen and articulating cart.  APPROVED 

 
  On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Kaiser and passed, 

the above recommendation was approved.   
 
9. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Aqua Metric in the amount of 

$100,045.98 for the purchase of 612 Sensus Technology meter 
transducer units.       APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Kaiser and passed, 
the above recommendation was approved. 
 
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Area Report for June, 2013. 
b. Monthly Cost Analysis – Ojai FLOW. 
c. Investment Report. 

 
President Word suggested a more descriptive name on the Monthly Cost 

Analysis.  Director Hicks questioned the number of camps and the Park Services 



 3

Manager reminded the board that this is from a formula.  There was discussion of 
changing to actual numbers from the reservation system instead of the formula 
needed for the Bureau.  This can be discussed further at the Recreation 
committee.  
 
11. Adjournment  
 

 President Word adjourned the meeting at 3:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
        _____________________ 
        Mary Bergen, Secretary  





























 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2013 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Finance Committee Meeting of August 16, 2013 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    
 Director Bergen and Director Kaiser  

 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Accounting Manager and Treasurer Denise Collin 
 Public – Joel Anderson 
    

2. Public comments.   
Mr. Anderson stated that his attendance at today’s meeting was at the suggestion of Mr. Ken 
Petersen, Manager for Golden State Water Company.  Mr. Anderson stated that he is interested 
in the many dimensions of the District, particularly the recreation area.  Mr. Anderson presented 
some background on himself and The View newspaper.  

 
3. Board/Management comments.  None. 
 
4. Review of the Financial Statement for July 2013. 

The Committee reviewed the financial statement for July 2013.  The Committee reviewed the 
expenditures in various work sections of the District.  Director Kaiser inquired into the costs for 
overtime and Outside Contracts in the Recreation budget.  The overtime in July is related to the 
Fourth of July weekend staffing and the increase Outside Contracts was due to expenditures for 
additional restroom and shower cleaning services, sewage haul services, and special weekend 
patrol by the Ventura County Sheriff.    

 
5. Review of the Water Consumption for June 2013. 

The Committee reviewed the water consumption numbers for July 2013.  Water sales have 
increased in the Agriculture and Pumped resale classifications.  Of notable increase is the sale 
of water to the City of Ventura.  The upward trending water demand is indicative of the dry 
weather pattern and depleted groundwater basins, transferring the demand to the Lake Casitas 
supply. 

 
6. Review of Ventura Water’s Annual Certification.   

The General Manager explained to the Committee that Ventura Water has provided a water 
certification and that Casitas will be invoicing Ventura Water for rental water.  According to 
Denise Collin, the invoiced amount will be accounted for in the water sales revenues.  



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  August 22, 2013 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Water Resources Committee Meeting of August 19, 2013 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.   Director Baggerly and Director Bergen.   

 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Staff – Ron Merckling 

 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board Comments.   

Director Baggerly inquired into the status of the Senior Canyon Mutual Water 
Company (SCMWC) Improvement project.  Ron Merckling reported that we are waiting 
for the final installation of the vault by SCMWC and then he will provide a final report to 
the State.   
 
Director Baggerly asked if staff were working on a timeline for the 2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan and tracking water conservation savings.  Mr. Merckling informed 
the Committee that he is following new legislation amendments that will be applicable 
toward the next UWMP.  Staff are continuing to document water savings efforts. 
 

4. Manager Comments.  None. 
 
5. Ventura River County Water District service area adjustments.  

The Committee was informed that VRCWD desires to adjust their service area 
boundaries to conform with the service area exchanges made in the mid-1990’s, and 
consider two separate service area boundary adjustments where customers are 
served by VRCWD but are a Casitas customer.  The Committee agreed that the 
General Manager should work with VRCWD to determine the best approach to 
resolving the two service area adjustments.  The recommendation of any change will 
be brought to the Casitas Board of Directors for review and consideration of approval. 

 
6. Watershed – Santa Ana Road Abandonment.  

The General Manager stated that he had received emails between the Bureau of 
Reclamation and Ventura County concerning the proposal to abandon the section of 
Santa Ana Road that lies within the Teague Watershed.  The Bureau is recognizing 
the need for public access controls to protect the watershed.  There is a process by 
which the Ventura County will proceed to abandon the roadway. 



 
7. Update on the Water Efficiency and Allocation Program.  

The General Manager reported on staff’s progress in revising the Program.  Staff are 
slightly behind schedule, but continuing to work on the Program. 
 

8. Cloud Seeding in Santa Barbara County. 
The Committee discussed recent proposals to cloud seed.  There are many issues 
with cloud seeding, including cost effectiveness.  The Committee discussed recent 
reports that have been prepared on this topic. 



 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: STEVEN E. WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN PURCHASE ORDER TO INSTALL 
TEMPORARY TANKS AT VILLANOVA RESERVOIR SITE                  
SPECIFICATION # 13-366 

DATE: 08/23/2013 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to sign a Purchase 
Order Contract to the lowest responsible bidder, Acacia Erosion Control, Inc. of Santa Barbara in 
the amount of $33,495.00 to Install Temporary Tanks at Villanova Reservoir Site, Specification 
No. 13-365  
 
Background and Discussion: 
 
The Villanova Reservoir is one of five single reservoir sites in Casitas’ system.  The Villanova 
Reservoir is scheduled for repair and interior coating this winter.  The reservoir must be empty 
and isolated from the water system for the repairs to be completed. In order to continue 
providing customers water and to allow water to be pumped higher into Casitas’ distribution 
system, temporary water storage is required at the Villanova Reservoir site.  This project will 
relocate the temporary tanks and piping used at the Upper Ojai Reservoir site to the Villanova 
Reservoir site and connects the temporary tanks to the water system. 
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge and on the District’s web site.  Three firms 
submitted proposals.  The bid results are 
 

FIRM BASE BID AMOUNT 
Acacia Erosion Control $33,495.00 
Offshore Construction Inc.  $39,125.00 
Travis Agricultural 
Construction 

$73,750.00 

 
This project is Categorically Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act under 
Section 15301 Existing Facilities.  Funding for this work is included in FY 2013-14 Budget in 
account 11-5-40-5912-00 Project Number 203. 
 
 





Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2013-2014 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2013 / 2014 2012 / 2013

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 510 510 364

AG Ag 405 405 361

C Commercial 101 101 88

DI Interdepartmental 20 20 27

F fire 0 0 0

I Industrial 1 1 1

OT Other 41 41 32

R Residential 286 286 212

RS - P Resale Pumped 133 133 12

RS - G Resale Gravity 515 515 139

TE Temporary 1 1 1

Total 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,013 1,237

Total 2012/2013 1237 1537 2344 1755 1722 952 541 760 845 1053 1427 1933 N/A 16106



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

08/22/13

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR BK 31331VK96 06/30/2014 $966,854.37 $967,243.20 5.650% 04/01/2013 6.00% 308

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,387,852.62 $1,308,217.50 1.625% 10/03/2012 8.11% 2092

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $730,645.31 $659,439.20 5.625% 01/16/2013 4.09% 2809

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XKTV7 06/13/2014 $970,139.62 $970,464.55 4.875% 04/01/2013 6.02% 291

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XLWN1 09/12/2014 $978,872.78 $978,713.40 5.250% 04/01/2013 6.07% 380

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/2013 $703,946.97 $706,566.00 3.125% 07/01/2010 4.38% 111

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $711,117.84 $731,087.00 2.875% 07/01/2010 4.53% 650

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/2015 $743,937.14 $765,632.00 4.750% 07/19/2010 4.75% 805

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134G34WJ 08/28/2014 $998,582.84 $998,814.54 0.375% 04/01/2013 6.20% 366

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $692,546.95 $690,635.94 1.375% 03/12/2012 4.28% 1163

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,153,858.69 $1,145,460.00 5.125% 01/03/2012 7.11% 1525

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/2013 $701,971.93 $702,765.00 4.125% 07/01/2010 4.36% 35

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/2014 $709,332.83 $718,053.00 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.45% 336

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $209,820.91 $190,000.00 2.375% 02/11/2013 1.18% 3021

*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/2014 $710,139.67 $721,259.00 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.47% 384

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,128,983.52 $1,173,212.41 1.375% 07/06/2010 7.28% 1763

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/2013 $700,960.35 $703,528.00 1.500% 07/01/2010 4.36% 129

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/2014 $705,338.79 $717,066.00 2.125% 07/01/2010 4.45% 458

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/2020 $1,113,991.69 $1,161,069.05 1.375% 07/01/2010 7.20% 2303

Accrued Interest $112,349.45

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $16,018,895 $16,121,575 88.15%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $445 $445 0.35% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,167,079 $2,167,079 0.65% Estimated 11.85%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $18,186,418 $18,289,098 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $18,195,394 $18,367,013

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,526,168 $14,892,723

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $1,707,973 $1,707,973

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $0 $0 0.010%

CASH IN PIMMA Money Market $0 $0 0.000%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $19,894,391 $19,997,071

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $17,888,657 $18,555,212

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	08-28-13 Agenda.pdf
	08-14-13 min
	bill list
	Fin Minutes 08 16 2013
	Water Res Minutes 08 19 2013
	award_memo temp villanova tanks
	Exhibit A-Villanova temp tank layout with pillow tank Model (1)
	Consumption 2013 - 2014
	Investment Report 08-22-2013

